ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 3, 2003
3:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Kim El ton

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
ORGANI ZATI ONAL MEETI NG

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4

Uging the United States Congress to pass legislation to open

the coastal plain of the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge,

Al aska, to oil and gas exploration, devel opnent, and producti on.
MOVED OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI OQUS ACTI ON
SJR 4 - No previous action to record.
W TNESS REGQ STER

M. Kurt O son

Staff to Senator WAagoner

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of SIR 4

M. Mark Myers, Director

Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

550 W 7th Ave. Ste 800

Anchorage AK 99501- 3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about ANVWR

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2003



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-1, SIDE A

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Senators Wagoner, Dyson, Seekins,
El t on, Lincoln and Chair Ogan were present. Chair QOgan
introduced conmttee staff and informed nenbers of conmttee
guidelines for future neetings. He then announced the conmttee
woul d take up SIR 4.

SJR 4- ENDORSI NG ANVR LEASI NG

SENATOR TOM WAGONER, sponsor of SJR 4, introduced Kurt d son,
his |legislative assistant, and asked M. O son to describe the
resolution to the comittee.

MR. OLSON told commttee nenbers that the intent of SJIR 4 is to
urge Congress to open the coastal plain of the Arctic National
Wldlife Refuge (ANWR) to oil and gas exploration, devel opnent
and production. North Sl ope production has been declining since
1988, when peak production reached 2 mllion barrels per day.
Current production is approximately half of that anount.
Devel opnent of the coastal plain would provide stability to
national energy demands while increasing Alaska's revenue
stream SJR 4 has two zero fiscal notes from the Departnents of
Natural Resources and Revenue. He thanked nenbers for their
consideration of this |egislation.

CHAIR OGAN acknow edged the presence of Senator Stevens and
opened the neeting for questions from nenbers.

SENATOR ELTON referred to |anguage on page 3, line 10, which
states, "the legislature 1is adamantly opposed to further
wi | derness or other restrictive designation in the area of the
coastal plain...." He asked if that |language will get in the way

of further restrictions on an over-the-top gas line route at the
state or federal |evel.

MR, OLSON said it will not, to the best of his know edge, but he
deferred to M. Mers for a nore definitive answer.

MR MARK MYERS, Director of the Division of QI and Gas,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), said he does not believe
that |anguage will affect any additional restrictions. He said
the legislation is a resolution from the state that nakes

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2003



recommendations to Congress. It should not unduly restrict or
bind the federal governnent from creating further wlderness
status | ands.

CHAI R OGAN concurred with M. Mers' assessnent and added that
| anguage says the | egislature supports a gas pipeline.

SENATOR ELTON expressed concern that the words, "opposed to
further wilderness or other restrictive designation" mght be
interpreted to nmean that the State of Alaska or the federa
government could not take any action to preclude an over-the-top
gas pipeline route because that wwuld be a restrictive
designation in the area of the coastal plain. He said he would
hate to see the legislature suggest to Congress that it ought
not do that.

CHAIR OGAN said it is his understanding that putting any part of
an over-the-top gas pipeline on ANVR is not an option, which is
why a gas pipeline would have to be built offshore.

SENATOR ELTON enphasized that the |anguage says, "in the area
of." He said if M. Mers is confortable with the |anguage, he
wi |l not push the point.

MR. MYERS responded that he is not sure of the |egal nuances

but, in terns of the state waters offshore of ANAR where the
pipeline is proposed, such restrictions do not exist. He
indicated the coastal |agoon areas are too shallow for a gas
pipeline so if an offshore gas pipeline were built, it would
have to be buried below the ice [indisc.] zone in sufficient
wat er dept h, which would be in waters wthout t hose

restrictions. He said as far as the onshore designati on goes, he
does not believe any rights to put pipeline facilities in ANWR
itself exist so, wthout a change of the current designation, it
is currently restricted. It is not likely that Congress would
put any further restrictions on it.

SENATOR ELTON noted that one problem he has had with all ANWR
resolutions is that they have been focused on production. He
asked Senator Wagoner if he would consider adding another clause

to link ANWR production to fuel conservation efforts. He
explained that SIJR 4 would then couple the notion of energy
dependency wth fuel conservation neasures, as well as new

producti on.

SENATOR WAGONER said he would have no objection to adding such
| anguage.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2003



SENATOR ELTON suggested adding the follow ng | anguage on page 3,
line 14, after the sem col on:

and that ANWR  production be linked to fuel
conservation efforts and be it further resol ved;

CHAI R OGAN asked Senator Elton to provide commttee nmenbers with
witten | anguage for | ater consideration.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the Chair planned to hold the resolution
in commttee.

CHAI R OGAN said he did not.

SENATOR ELTON asked the Chair if he was suggesting that the
anendnent be offered on the Senate fl oor.

CHAIR OGAN said when he asks that a bill be anended in
commttee, he brings witten | anguage to the conmttee. He again
asked Senator Elton to provide the proposed anendnent in
writing.

3:40 p.m

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if SIJR 4 is identical to the resolution
passed by the | egislature |ast year.

MR OLSON said it is.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the |anguage on page 3, line 14,
that reads, "to the maxinmum extent possible" and said she
considers those words to be "weasel words.” She said she

under stands that Congress cannot nmandate that the state's work
force be used exclusively. She suggested that phrase be del eted.

SENATOR WAGONER said he would consider Senator Li ncoln's
suggesti on.

CHAI R OGAN pointed out that as nmuch as he would like to nmandate
Al aska hire, the state has its hands tied by the Interstate
Commerce Clause of the U S. Constitution, so he believes that
| anguage i s appropriate.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked that Senator Wagoner consider changing

that phrase. She then commented that she understands that the
majority of Alaskans support the opening of ANAWR and its

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2003



potential for Alaska's econony. However, she represents the
Guvch'in tribe, which is very concerned about opening ANWR She
has long felt that the Porcupine Caribou Herd is intricately
tied to their lives and that any disturbance to that herd would
be the demise of that tribe. The Gmch'in people use that herd
for food, clothing, shelter and religious purposes. She does not
feel that sufficient protections are in place to guarantee the

herd will not go in another direction. For that reason, she has
consistently opposed devel opnent in ANVR. She noted she will not
object to noving SJR 4 out of commttee, but she wll not

support it on the Senate floor.

CHAIR OGAN said with all due respect, he has killed many cari bou
and has found them to be the dunbest animal he has ever
encountered other than donestic sheep. As |long as one doesn't
act like a predator, caribou will walk right up to a hunter. He
felt, regarding oil developnent in ANWR if the herd is not
harassed, it could care less. He said he knows people who have
wat ched caribou calve within sight of production platfornms. He
said the sane fear was expressed during devel opnment of the North
Slope yet the nunber of caribou in that particular herd has
i ncreased six tines since that area was devel oped.

SENATOR LINCOLN said he has heard that sentinment expressed
before but her npother speaks about growi ng up in Ranmpart and how
she could have literally wal ked across the Yukon R ver on the
backs of caribou. However, those caribou changed their mgration
route for several reasons and, during her lifetime, there has
been no caribou herd in Ranpart. She said she thinks it is
possi bl e that could occur again. She noted her point was to |et
the sponsor know her position on the resolution and that it has
nothing to do with his sponsorship.

SENATOR ELTON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which reads as
fol | ows:

Page 3, line 14, follow ng "extent possible;" add

and that Arctic National WIdlife Refuge production be
debated in the context of fuel conservation efforts;

CHAI R OGAN objected and said he believes it is unnecessary to
tie a CAFE [Corporate Average Fuel Econony] standard to SJR 4.
Congress may wish to do so but he believes putting it in SIR 4
m ght weaken Al aska's congressional delegation from getting ANVR
open.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2003



SENATOR ELTON noted he used broad | anguage to craft Anmendnent 1
to nerely suggest that ANWR production be debated in the context
of fuel conservation efforts. It doesn't make the inpact of the
resolution contingent wupon anything happening to the CAFE
st andar ds.

3:50 p. m

SENATOR SEEKINS nmmintained that ANWR devel opnent could be
debated in many contexts - independence on foreign oil
enpl oynment, and others, and he believes Congress will ook at it

in all of those contexts.

CHAIR OGAN concurred and said the current advertisement that
inplies that SUV drivers are supporting terrorism could be
stretched to nean that opponents of ANWR devel opnent support
terrorism He said he would like to add that to SIR 4 but does
not believe it would be constructive.

SENATOR ELTON felt that defeating the amendnment will narrow the
argunent .

CHAIR OGAN asked for a roll call vote. The nption to adopt
Amendnment 1 failed with Senator Stevens, Dyson, Seekins and
Chair Ogan opposed, and Senators Wagoner, Elton and Lincoln in
favor.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he recently read that the United States
Geol ogi cal Survey (USGS) has | ooked at oil seeps and identified
the oil from ANMR as | ow sul fur sweet crude. He asked if that is
correct.

MR. MYERS said there are five point sources that can be typed
for generating oil. The USGS s recent work suggests that sone of
the lighter, lower sulfur crude is from wells to the west of
Prudhoe Bay.

SENATOR SEEKI NS suggested that exploration for that crude could
have added val ue from an environnmental standpoint and it is |ess
expensive to refine. From that standpoint, the legislature is
bringing the debate into the area of fuel conservation.

MR. MYERS agreed that devel opnent of the lighter higher quality

crude wth less sulfur wuld have positive environnmenta
effects, as well as a gas line from associ ated gas devel opnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2003



CHAIR OGAN asked if a couple of wells have been drilled near
Kakt ovi k.

MR. MYERS answered that one well has been drilled by Chevron on
Nati ve | and near Kaktovik but the results are confidenti al.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Mers if he has access to those results.

MR. MYERS said he does but cannot disclose it.

SENATOR DYSON noved SJR 4 out of conmttee wth individual
recommendati ons and asked for unani nous consent. There being no

obj ection, the notion carried.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
CHAI R OGAN adj ourned the neeting at 4:00 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2003



